Note: This list includes all questions received through September 1, 2005. If the question is not listed below we are still researching the answer.  If any duplicate questions were received only one was included in this response. Questions may be out of order from what was originally submitted by potential Offerors.
1. In Section M, "Evaluation Factors for Award", Article M.1, "Evaluation of Compensation for Professional Employees", paragraph (b), line 6, states "Offerors are cautioned that lowered compensation for essentially the same professional work may indicate lack of sound management judgment and lack of understanding of the requirement." This statement is followed in Article M.1, paragraph (d), which further states "Failure to comply with these provisions may constitute sufficient cause to justify rejection of a proposal". Lockheed Martin requests that the Government provide current compensation data for the professional service employees in question, so that we may ensure that our Total Compensation Plan is competitive and does
not fall below the Government's reasonable expectations for the retention of competent professional service employees.

Response: Each Offeror is to propose their technical approach which may or may not parallel the skill mix, positions, and total compensation currently experienced; therefore, the requested information will not be provided.

2. We request that NASA provide a two week extension to the due date of the proposal to October 3, 2005.  Because elements were moved from the Statement of Work to RTO#1, more time is needed to adequately respond to the requirements with the detail required for a representative task order.

Response: Although the RFP structure was changed (SOW into several RTOs), we do not believe this warrants the need for an extension. The proposal due date remains unchanged.

3. Ref: Section L of the RFP states that "Offerors shall provide written position qualifications for the specific labor categories envisioned for this requirement." Will NASA consider providing a base list of labor categories, qualifications and hours to all offerors?  Since the incumbent contractor has a clear and substantial competitive advantage in this area, by virtue of the fact that the RFP requirements are currently being supported under its ISEM contract, providing the labor categories and hours is necessary to better ensure a level playing field between incumbent and other offerors.  Additionally, the Government should define the labor categories and hours, so as to standardize industry responses and aid the proposal evaluation process.

Response: Offerors are to propose their own solutions to the requirements.  An Offeror's approach to staffing and critical position definitions will provide insight into its understanding of the requirement; therefore, this information will not be provided.

4. Ref: Section J.1 List of Attachments. This table of deliverable items makes a number of references to “xx days after award” as delivery date, but the Period of Performance on the contract is not expected to begin until 01 December (at the completion of the 30-day transition contract).  The Representative Task Orders, however, state the delivery dates for these same items (e.g., the Configuration Management Plan) as “xx days after contract start”.  May the offeror assume correctly that references in Section J.1 to “xx days after award” are to be interpreted as “xx days after contract start” as stated in the SOW?

Response: The IT Security Plan and the Organizational Conflict of Interest Plan are due 30 days after contract award as stated in Clause J.1. 

5.  Reference: Section L
Question: The RFP does not mention the use of an oral presentation to NASA.  Would NASA consider having oral presentations of the technical solution?  This would aid the proposal evaluation process and give the evaluators an opportunity to meet the critical personnel to be able to further evaluate their effectiveness in NASA’s environment.

Response: NASA will not be holding oral presentations.
6. Reference: RTO #1

Question: RTO#1 elements include references to a section 8.0 (Phase-in to the HITSS Contract Support), and to a Section 9.0 (Special Requirements for Headquarters’ Offices).  May we assume this reference to a section 8.0 in RTO #1 is null, and that this is covered in our response to RTO 5?  As there is no scope of work provided for Section 9.0 (Special Requirements for Headquarters’ Offices) in RTO #1, can we assume that this element (Special Requirements for Headquarters’ Offices) is not required under any of the RTOs?  

Response: Sections 8.0 and 9.0 were deleted from the SOW in the final RFP. Phase-in shall be addressed in RTO 5.Support for Special Requirements will be required under the contract. However, these will be issued as individual task orders.
7. The final RFP includes numerous references to SOW 10.0 tasks (RTO #1, Paragraphs 1.0, 1.1.1.3, 3.13; RTO #5, Paragraphs 1.1, 1.2), yet SOW 10.0 no longer appears to exist. Please clarify. Additionally, there are references in RTO #1 for work in support of Mission Directorates (Paragraphs 2.1, 5.5.4), which was classified as SOW 10.0 work in the industry briefing. Is it the Government’s intent to have this work included and priced in RTO #1? 

Response: Section 10.0 HQ Special Requirements was deleted from the SOW for the final RFP. Special Requirements will be issued as individual task orders. There was some overlap between the core services and the special tasks. The work specified in RTO 1 shall be priced as part of RTO 1. NASA will address RTO 5 in a future response.

8. RFP Section L.13.2c, as well as the format of Exhibit B-1, instructs offerors to specify RTO cost elements by month. RTO # 1 is the core requirements of HITSS and extends over the 5-year period of the contemplated contract. Please clarify if costs are expected to be estimated by month for the entire 5-year period or just for the first contract year.

Response: Offerors shall provide monthly prices for each contract year.

 9.  Due to the width of some of the cost forms, please allow use of smaller than 10 pt font, so offerors can size the cost forms to fit the page while still being readable.

Response: 10 pt font is the smallest allowable font.
10. RFP Clause B.8 will incorporate ceiling rates on all indirect burden pools for the 5-year contract period, and paragraph b addresses circumstances under which the CO has discretion to adjust the ceilings. 

a.  One of the specified conditions under which the CO has discretion to accept indirect rate increases is when such increases are caused by revised Wage Determinations. Please clarify whether an existing DOL Wage Determination applies to the HITSS contract.

Response: Paragraph B of Clause B.8, which references a wage determination, is provided as an example of when the Contractor may request an increase to the ceiling rates. There is not an existing wage determination for this contract.
b.  Please consider modifying Clause B.8.b to include certain other potential rate increases over which the contractor will have no control, such as:

· Additional Government holidays decreed by Executive Order (e.g. Christmas Eve, Inauguration Day, etc.)

· Acts of God (e.g. weather-related leave) or terrorism 

Response: Clause B.8 establishes the indirect ceiling rates for the contract. It is expected that the actual indirect rates will be lower than the ceiling rates and that any increases associated with the suggested examples would fall within the range between the actual and ceiling rates, especially since these are basically one time events. The examples provided in Clause B.8 are long term changes to company policies.

11. RFP Section L.13 2.(d): Can the prime offeror submit a single set of BOEs that incorporate subcontractor proposed efforts, or are all significant subcontractors (>$1m) required to separately submit BOEs for their proposed portion of effort?

Response: A single set of BOEs may be submitted as long as the required information is provided for the prime and the subcontractor(s) and the required page limitation is not exceeded. 
12. 10.  RFP Section L.13 2.(f):  Please confirm that the reference to Attachment 3 should be Attachment B.

Response: All references to Attachment 3 should be Attachment C and will be corrected in the Amendment.
13. Section L.13.2(b) requires offerors to propose ceiling burden rates for each of the five years in the contemplated period of performance. Are ceiling rates required for any of the subcontractors?

Response: Ceiling rates shall be provided for all significant subcontractors (>$1M). 

14. 13.  Clause B.1: Please clarify if the correct reference is clause H.11, TASK ORDERING PROCEDURE, instead of clause H.13.

Response: Correct.

14.  Clause B.1: In the Deliverables table, please clarify if the references to Clauses G.11 through H.13 are correct.

Response:  The RFP will be amended to replace the table in B.1 with the following table:
	Deliverable Name
	Reference

	Services and Deliverables in accordance with the Statement of Work and Task Orders Issued
	Section J, Attachment A and Task Orders Issued

	Monthly Financial Management Reports (NF533M)
	See Clause G.1

	Quarterly Financial Management Reports (NF533Q)
	See Clause G.1

	GSFC Form 20-4
	See Clause G.4

	Quarterly Report of Contractor-Acquired Property
	See Clause G.4

	NASA Forms 1489 & 1324
	See Clause G.4

	New Technology Reporting
	See Clause G.11

	DD Form 1149
	See Clause G.15

	NASA Form 1018
	See Clause G.17

	Final Organizational Interest Avoidance Plan
	See Clause H.3

	NASA Form 531
	See Clauses H.5 & H.6

	LISTS Reporting
	See Clause H.5

	Task Plans
	See Clause H.13

	IT Security Plan
	See Clause I.1, 1852.204-76


15.  Clause B.8:  Please clarify the purpose of the “(2)” under “Base of Application.”

Response: The "(2)" is an artifact from the draft RFP. It does not have any meaning in this RFP. The amendment will delete the "(2)".
16.  Clause B.9(b) references Attachment C and Clause B.9(c) references Attachment D.  Please clarify if both of these should be Attachment B.
Response: Correct.
17.  Clause G.1 (b): Please clarify if the correct reference to Section J, Attachment B should instead be Attachment H.

Response: Correct.
18.  The clause references in Attachment B (Direct Labor and Indirect Rates Matrix), Sections 1, 2 and 4, are with one exception either incorrect or left blank. Please clarify.

Response: The references will be corrected in the amendment.
19. The cost exhibit B-1 includes two footnotes: “* Significant Subcontractor (>$1M) – Direct Labor Hours Only”, and “** List each significant subcontractor separately by name (>$1M) – Labor and Total Costs”.  Please clarify which “Elements of Cost” to which these footnotes apply.

Response: The first note (*)  refers to Direct Labor Hours. The second note (**) requires the Offeror to provide a complete cost breakdown of any significant subcontractor(s) as back up to any line items under other direct costs for subcontractor costs. 

20.  Please clarify what is required on the cost exhibit B-6 rows listed as “PRODUCTIVE WORK YEAR in Hours” and “Hours Actually Worked”.
Response: The line "Hours Actually Worked" will be deleted in the amendment.
21. Reference:  Section L, Paragraph L.10(b), Page 101, Table instructions for Volume IV, and L.1(a), Page 127, Paragraph following item 13.

We request that the Government also exclude from the Volume IV page limit specified in L.10(b) the consent letters and list of questionnaire recipients specified in L.14(a).

Response: The amendment revises this requirement and will exclude the consent letters from the page limitations but not the list of recipients.
23.  Reference:  Section B, Paragraph B.9(c), Page 10.

This RFP paragraph begins:  “The Government and Contractor agree that the maximum available award fee percentage specified in Attachment D . . .”  Attachment D is the IAGP list; please provide the correct reference for this paragraph.

Response: The correct reference should be Attachment B. This reference is corrected in the amendment.
24.  Reference:  Section L, Paragraph L.12.2.3, Subfactor A, Page 110, Last Paragraph, and Exhibit A-3 (RTO 3), Last Paragraph.

The referenced Section L paragraph expressly prohibits offerors from performing design work on the RTOs in response to the RFP.  However, the specifications for RTO 3 require offerors to plan and cost the implementation of the Human Capital Knowledge Vault (HCKV) system at NASA Headquarters and NASA Centers.  It is not possible to fully cost this RTO without designing the solution and identifying the hardware and software that will be required to operate the HCKV system.  Please resolve these conflicting requirements.

Response: The intent of the RTO's is for the Offerors to describe their approach and understanding of the requirements. Whatever strategies an Offeror uses to develop its proposal is a business decision.
25. Exhibit A-1 does not include sections 8.0 and 9.0. Are those sections not included for a reason?

Response: Correct. References to Sections 8.0 and 9.0 were left over from the draft RFP. The amendment will delete references to 8.0 and 9.0 in RTO 1.
26. Wanted to let you know that the link on the NAIS site for the HITSS SOW pulls up a 2-page document and not the entire SOW.

Response: The Statement of Work is only 2 pages long. Under an IDIQ-type contract, the SOW provides a framework for the type of work to be performed. Specific tasks will be negotiated with the successful Offeror utilizing the labor rates provided for in Attachment B.
27. RFP Clause B.1:  Are the IT Security Plan and Final Organizational Conflicts of Interest Avoidance Plan due 30 days after contract start or 30 days after contract award?  Can we assume that the terms “contract start” and “contract award” are synonymous in this case?

Response: The plans are due 30 days after contract award as stated in Clause J.1. 
28. We were unable to download Attachment D of the RFP. Please provide the document in a different format.

Response: Amendment 2 was issued on 8/23/05 correcting the format of the document.
29. Ref: RTO #1 1.3.3.1 Are both NEMS controlled and non-NEMS controlled property considered in the 0.25% loss SLA or does the SLA just apply to NEMS items?

Response: Only the NEMS controlled property applies to the 0.25% loss rate.
30. Reference: Exhibit A-2, RTO #2  AGENCY-WIDE SECTION 508 MARKET RESEARCH DATABASE What user communities other than Purchasers will use this database and what is the total user population that will need to access the database?
Response: The database will be available to all NASA employees and NASA contractors; about 20,000 individuals potentially will have need to use the system.

31. Reference: Exhibit A-2, RTO #2  AGENCY-WIDE SECTION 508 MARKET RESEARCH DATABASE  The requirement states the need to, "Provide controlled access to Agency users."  Are there any special security requirements beyond those stated in other documentation?
Response: No.

32. Reference: Exhibit A-2, RTO #2  AGENCY-WIDE SECTION 508 MARKET RESEARCH DATABASE  This is projected to be an Agency-wide database.  Are the servers to be located at HQ, MSFC, or another location?  
Response: The initial phase will most likely be hosted at Headquarters, although that decision will be made by the development as part of the design process.

33. Reference: Exhibit A-2, RTO #2  AGENCY-WIDE SECTION 508 MARKET RESEARCH DATABASE Is there spare capacity on existing database servers to minimize hardware costs?  
Response: The assumption may be made that spare capacity on existing servers exists.

34. Reference: Exhibit A-2, RTO #2  AGENCY-WIDE SECTION 508 MARKET RESEARCH DATABASE Which version of Oracle is in use?  Does NASA already have the licenses needed (such as enterprise licenses) for this project or should new licenses be priced?
Response: The assumption may be made that the existing database servers have sufficient licenses for this project. The bidder’s library contains the baseline configurations, but in short, 9i and 10g.
35. Reference: Exhibit A-2, RTO #2  AGENCY-WIDE SECTION 508 MARKET RESEARCH DATABASE Is there an expectation for this system to share data with systems in NASA or other Agencies?
Response: The assumption may be made that the system does not share data with other NASA systems. There is no requirement to provide access to this system for other federal agencies.

36. Reference: Exhibit A-2, RTO #2  AGENCY-WIDE SECTION 508 MARKET RESEARCH DATABASE  Are any specific reports required?  Is there a need for ad-hoc reporting capabilities?
Response: There are no specific reporting requirements. 

37. Reference: Exhibit A-3, RTO #3  HUMAN CAPITAL KNOWLEDGE VAULT The requirements state the need to collect and store digital images, drawings, figures, etc.  Does this include the need to scan existing hard copy documentation and photographs?
Response: Source facts, data, digital images, drawings, figures, charts, graphs, processes, methods, procedures, and information (including information about information) exist in electronic and/or hard copy form. The requirement is " ...this system shall provide for the collection, storage, and logical arrangement" of those objects and items.

38. Reference: Exhibit A-3, RTO #3  HUMAN CAPITAL KNOWLEDGE VAULT Is there a need to store video in the knowledge vault?
Response: Yes, video and multi-media objects will need to be stored in the knowledge vault.  

39. Reference: Exhibit A-3, RTO #3  HUMAN CAPITAL KNOWLEDGE VAULT
Question: How much data is expected to be stored in the system within 12 months of implementation?  How much data is expected to be stored in the system within 60 months?
Response:  Volume of data has not been predicted. Offerors should explain any assumptions made in their proposal.
40. Reference: Exhibit A-3, RTO #3  HUMAN CAPITAL KNOWLEDGE VAULT What are the business rules for archiving data?  If no such rules exist, is the intent to have all data ever entered in the system available indefinitely?
Response:  Business rules for archiving data have not been determined or specified.  It is not the intent to have all data ever entered in the system available indefinitely, although most data is expected to be available indefinitely.  Federal Regulations exist that govern records retention and may be the governing factor for some data records retention and data archiving in relation to the data and information stored in the Knowledge Vault.

41. Reference: Exhibit A-3, RTO #3  HUMAN CAPITAL KNOWLEDGE VAULT  What user communities are expected to use this database?
Response: Initially the HQ workforce; eventually the entire agency workforce.
42. Reference: Exhibit A-3, RTO #3  HUMAN CAPITAL KNOWLEDGE VAULT What is the total user population that will need to access the database?
Response: See response to Question 41.

43. Reference: Exhibit A-3, RTO #3  HUMAN CAPITAL KNOWLEDGE VAULT Will there be a need to store any type of classified information in the Knowledge Vault?  For example, information related to work performed with the military.  If so, at what level of classification?
Response: No. 

44. Reference: Exhibit A-3, RTO #3  HUMAN CAPITAL KNOWLEDGE VAULT  Will organizations outside of NASA need access to this system?  For example, partners in the ISS program accessing the system from other countries.  If so, will there be a need to support languages other than English?
Response:  Initially, workforce members supporting NASA HQ; eventually workforce members supporting all the NASA Centers, i.e., supporting the entire agency. Only English need be supported.

45. Reference: Exhibit A-4, RTO #4   HIGHLY AVAILABLE ORACLE DATABASE  The main reason given for replacing the servers is, “…because of the difficulty in maintaining them effectively” and to increase availability on the weekends.  Beyond the stated time objective for backups (30 minutes or less) and availability (99.99% or better uptime), what are the performance requirements for this system from the end-user perspective?  Is the current configuration meeting these performance requirements?
Response:  The current configuration meets the performance requirements. Performance requirements shall be equal to or better than the current performance requirements.

46. Reference: Exhibit A-4, RTO #4   HIGHLY AVAILABLE ORACLE DATABASE

Question: Does NASA have enterprise licenses with Oracle that can be used for this project or should new pricing be provided?  If licenses already exist, which Oracle components are covered?
Response:  NASA has enterprise licenses that can be used for this project. Licenses already exist and all required Oracle components are included.

47. Reference: RTO #1, Section 1.3.3 Logistics and Property Management What is the current non NEMS Property Management software that is in place?  Will the HITSS contractor be able to use the software license?

Response:  NASA HQ currently uses the NASA Equipment Management System (NEMS) to manage property.  The HITSS vendor will be able to use this system for tracking NASA property.

48.  Reference: RTO #1, Section 1.5 Configuration Management What is the current Configuration Management software that is in place?  Will the HITSS contractor be able to use the software license?
Response:  The ISEM Work Management System (IWMS) is currently used as the primary Configuration Management system.  The HITSS vendor may use this custom software.  

49.  Reference: Exhibit A-1, Representative Task Order 1, Section7.3 Task Order Automated Management System - The Offeror is to propose a task order automated management system in their proposal.  Please identify the functions required of the task order management system. Is there currently a COTS task order management system in place? 
Response:   The task order automated management system requires the following functions: submitting, tracking, reviewing, and approving task orders.  Also, it should present information such as task funding status, task order owner, task value, etc.

The ISEM contract does not have a COTS task order management system in place.
50. Will the HITSS Contractor be authorized to lease GSA vehicles?

Response: We do not anticipate any authorization to lease GSA vehicles.  
51. Reference:  Page 2 of the RFP - Index of Clauses for RFP – NNH05071554R
Section B.9 – Supplemental Task Ordering Procedures,  H.10 - Government Property – Compliance with Safety Standards and I.16 – Limitations of Indirect Costs.

Clarification:  Reference to B.9 – Supplemental Task Ordering Procedures is missing from the Index list.  Please clarify that the clause per Section H.10 – Government Property – Compliance with Safety Standards has been removed from the RFP.  Please clarify that the clause per Section H.10 – Government Property – Compliance with Safety Standards has been removed from the RFP.  
Response: Clause B.9 will be added to the Index. Clause H.10 will be deleted from the Index. It is not part of this RFP. The corrections will be provided for in the upcoming amendment.


52. Reference:  Section B.1 Deliverable Table: Reference H.13; Reference G.15 DD Form 1419; LISTS Reporting

Clarification:  Please clarify the correct reference for Task Plans, as clause H.13 is not listed in the RFP.  Please clarify that the form number DD Form 1419 should read DD Form 1149 per clause G.15.  Please clarify that the correct section reference for LISTS Reporting should read H.4 in lieu of H.5.
Response: The correct reference is H.11. Clause B.1 will be revised to correct the reference the DD Form 1419 to 1149. The correct reference for LISTS reporting should be H.4. These corrections will be made in the upcoming amendment.


52. Reference:  Section L.10(b) – Proposal Content and Page Limitations, Table Reference

Clarification:  Please confirm that the Section L references for the following Proposal Volumes should read: Volume I, Ref. L.11 in lieu of L.9; Volume II, Ref. L.12 in lieu of L.10; Volume III, Ref. L.13 in lieu of L.11; Volume IV, Ref. L.14 in lieu of L.12.

Response: The table in section L.10 (b) will be replaced with the following table in the Amendment to correct the reference column:
	Proposal Component
	Volume
	REF
	Max Pages*

	Offer Volume
	I
	L.11
	None

	Mission Suitability Volume

	II
	L.12
	 100 Pages

	Cover Page, Indices, SOW Compliance Matrix, Total Compensation Plan, Quality Assurance Plan (QAP), Safety and Health Plan, Small Business Subcontracting Plan, Small Disadvantaged Business Participation Program, Position  Qualifications, and Deviations & Exceptions
	
	
	Excluded

	Cost Volume
	III
	L.13
	Mixed

	(a) Direct and Indirect Rate Matrices (Attachment B)
	
	
	None 

	(b) Representative Task Order (RTO) Costs (Exhibits B-1, B-2 and B-3)
	
	
	None

	(c) Basis of Estimates 
	
	
	35 Pages* 

	(d) Deviations/Exceptions
	
	
	Excluded

	Past Performance Volume (excluding SF294/SF295 reports)
	IV
	L.14az
	 50 Pages

	Cover Page, Indices, Past Performance Questionnaires, List of Acronyms, and  Deviations & Exceptions
	
	
	Excluded


53. Reference:  Attachment B.1 reads: “The Contractor shall not exceed the rates as specified below for pricing all task orders contemplated or issued in accordance with Clause H.13 …”

Clarification:  Please clarify the clause reference, as clause H.13 is not listed in the RFP.
Response:  The correct reference should be H.11. This will be corrected in the Amendment.
54. Reference: L.14 Past Performance Proposal Instructions, Item a, states "Offerors shall include in their proposal the written consent of their proposed significant subcontractors and/or team members to allow the Government to discuss the subcontractors' past performance evaluation with the Offeror."

Clarification: Do letters of consent from subcontractors as defined in the reference above have to be included in the page limitations for the Past Performance Volume? We recommend that these be excluded from the page limitation.

Response: The letters of consent are excluded from the page limitations for the Past Performance Volume. This change will be reflected in the Amendment.
55. Reference: RTO 1

Clarification: Section 7.3, Task Order Automated Management System, is included within the RTO Section 7, Information Technology Security. The requirement for Task Order Automated Management System does not appear to be directly related to Information Technology Security. Please clarify if the Task Order Automated Management System is intended to be part of the Information Technology Security requirements or if it was intended to be a “standalone” requirement. 

Response: The Task Order Automated Management System is a standalone system.

56. Reference: Section L.12.3 Subfactor C- Safety and Health

Clarification: The sentence “The plan shall address the offeror’s past safety record and accident history subcontractor employee safety and occupational health for those proposed subcontracts.” Is unclear about what is desired.  It appears that the sentence may be missing some language or punctuation between the words "history and subcontractor." As written it is not clear. Request that that the Government clarify. 
Response: The amendment will delete this language.
57. RTO 1, Section 7.1.1.3: Can incumbent personnel who are Foreign Nationals be retained under the HITSS contract, or must they be replaced?

Response: Regardless of status, the contractor shall not fill positions with, or assign duties that require, privileged or limited privileged access to Foreign Nationals. "Regardless of status" includes incumbents.  See NPR 1600.1 for further details.
58. RFP Section L.11(c)(1) states the contract may only be awarded to an offeror who has been determined by the Defense Contract Management Agency (DCMA) to have an adequate accounting system. In our experience, accounting system adequacy determinations have been made by the Defense Contract Audit Agency (DCAA), and not DCMA. Please clarify.

Response: DCMA and DCAA work together to ensure contractors have an adequate accounting system.

59. Will previous versions of the ISEM plans (ex. Configuration Management Plan, Quality Assurance Plan, IT Support Plan, etc.) be available to all offerors?

Response: No because of proprietary information.
